
 

 

 
The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some business in 
private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 
 

  

 
 
 

BRENT AND LEWISHAM IT 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date: THURSDAY, 27 OCTOBER 2016  

Brent Civic Centre 
Engineers Way 
Wembley HA9 0FJ 
 
Enquiries to:    Tom Welsh 
Telephone:        0208 937 6607 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

   

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Barry Quirk 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Date Not Specified 

 

 



 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee October 2016 
 

1 - 6 

2.   ICT Shared Service 
 

7 - 18 

3.   2016 OCTOBER PERFORMANCE 
 

19 - 23 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee  October 2016 

 
 

 

 

Brent and Lewisham Joint 
Committee 

27 October 2016 
 

Report from the Head of Digital 
Services 

For Information 
 

 Wards Affected: ALL 
 

Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee 
October 2016 

 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 The ICT Shared Service between the London Borough of Brent and the 
London Borough of Lewisham went live in April 2016. The Shared Services 
Business Plan attached as Appendix 1, outlines the core business activities 
and required outcomes for the first year of operation of the shared service 
(2016-17). 
 

1.2 The shared service has completed 6 months and significant progress has 
been made on the projects to update Lewisham’s infrastructure, with the 
desktop rollout completed and priority services migrated to the new 
infrastructure. 
 

1.3 The restructure of the service was completed and the new structure went live 
in August.  
 

1.4 The current focus is on the following areas: progressing the migration of 
remaining Lewisham services to the new infrastructure, performance 
improvement on the service desk, planning for the potential next phase of the 
shared service, identifying savings and potential income opportunities for 
17/18 and beyond. 

 
 

2.0 Recommendation  
 

2.1 The ICT Shared Service Joint Committee is asked to: 
a) Note the contents of the Business Plan as set out in Section 1 and 

Appendix 1. 
b) Note the actions being taken in Section 2 - Key Updates to bring the 

Lewisham infrastructure in line with the Brent infrastructure. 



 
Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee  October 2016 

 
 

c) Note the contents of the Performance Pack as outlined in Section 3 
and Appendix 2 and agree any remedial actions as necessary. 

d) Note the current budget position for the ICT Shared Service as set out 
in Section 4. 

 

3.0 Key Updates 
 

3.1 The desktop rollout in Lewisham was completed with the exceptions of the 
Library Service and Youth Services. Libraries have a dependency on upgrade 
of data links, with significant lead times. In terms of the Youth Services we 
have been negotiating to establish if they wanted to buy IT services from us, 
as they were separating from the council. This is now being progressed and 
will be generating income for the shared service going forward. 
 

3.2 Priority services in Lewisham have been migrated to the new infrastructure, 
including Payroll (Resource Link), Social Care (Liquid Logic), Planning 
(IDOX), Education (Tribal). A new email environment has been built and the 
migration of users to it is being completed this month. 

 
3.3 With the completion of the core part of the project we are losing a number of 

interim staff funded through the project, and the majority of the remaining work 
at Lewisham is to be completed by BAU staff. 

 
3.4 The restructure of the shared service was completed in August. This left the 

service with a number of vacancies, and we are currently going through a 
recruitment process to fill them. 

 
3.5 We have experienced issues with the performance of the service desk and we 

have implemented a number of changes in September which we anticipate 
will show improvement in the service in the next couple of months. This is 
explained in more detail in section of this report. 

 
3.6 Both councils have realised their significant target savings for 16/17. The 

budget position is outlined in section 5 of this report. 
 

3.7 Work on the potential next phase of the shared service is underway.  This 
could involve merging our application support teams in order increase 
resilience and capacity.  An analysis of the options with recommendations will 
be finalised shortly and will be taken through the appropriate governance 
arrangements in each Council. 

 
3.8 Discussions are taking place at director level with other local authorities to 

explore opportunities for the shared service to generate additional income in 
17/18 and beyond.  

 
3.9 Brent are finalising a business case for hosting OneOracle at the end of the 

Cap Gemini contract in July 18 and will be taking this to Cabinet in November 
2016. This would generate savings to Brent from the current revenue costs, 
and has the potential to also generate income from hosting on behalf of other 
councils. Lewisham are working on their own business case as they have to 
deal with the complication of their Payroll using the Northgate ResourceLink 



 
Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee  October 2016 

 
 

application instead of OneOracle; Brent have provided the costs for their 
option to Lewisham to incorporate in their business case. 

 

4.0 Performance Pack 
 

4.1 The latest performance pack is issued with this report as at Appendix 2. The 
pack contains the following: 

 Status of objectives from the Shared ICT Service Business Plan 

 Risks  

 KPI performance for Brent 

 KPI performance for Lewisham 

 Exceptions  

4.2 We are not at this point in time meeting the performance targets we have set 
for the service. We do however have to put this in context; 5 major factors 
have affected performance over the first 6 months and these are explained 
below: 
 
i) Pressure on resources to deliver the infrastructure refresh project 

at Lewisham: the first step in establishing the shared service was to 
do a complete replacement of all Lewisham infrastructure: network, 
desktops and servers. To put this in perspective this was repeating 
similar projects we had already done for Brent, but with timescales of 
12 months for network, 18 months for desktops and 24+ months for 
servers. We did have interim staff to support the project but we had to 
rely heavily on existing staff for more specialised knowledge of our 
infrastructure and experience from the Brent projects. 
 
We have now completed the network and desktop projects in a fraction 
of the time, and are going through the server refresh, which should be 
completed by mid-2017. Whilst the majority of the work has now been 
completed there is likely to be an ongoing pressure on resources until 
the final completion of the project. 
 

ii) Maintaining both old and new infrastructure at Lewisham: while 
rolling out the new desktop solution the shared service has also had to 
maintain the old XP laptops and desktops, which we are now in the 
process of decommissioning. The resourcing levels of the shared 
service are based on maintaining a thin client environment only, with 
most of the work is done remotely from the end user; little or no time 
needed to visit different office locations, or rebuild faulty PCs. Against 
whilst the new desktops are now in place there will continue to be a 
pressure on resources until the old laptops have all been 
decommissioned. 
 

iii) Restructure of the department to address the requirements of the 
shared service: in April we had a department that consisted of what 
was before the Brent ICT team, with additional staff that transferred 
under TUPE from Capita (Lewisham contract) and Liberata (LGA 
contract). Work was needed to implement a new structure that was fit 
for purpose to provide the services of the new shared service. The 



 
Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee  October 2016 

 
 

restructure did mean some disruption to staff, as well as a delay in 
filling vacancies in the establishment. The restructure is now complete, 
and the new structure went live in early October 2016.  
 

iv) Vacant posts in the department, with some key posts not covered 
by interim staff: As mentioned above we have some vacancies that 
we could not recruit on until the restructure was complete. This 
included some key roles, notably of an additional team leader and a 
technical support coordinator, both roles essential to improving service 
performance. We are in the process of recruiting for these positions. 
 

v) Split ServiceDesk (both IT system and team) across two councils: 
Lewisham service desk was implemented in April on a new cloud 
version of our service desk software (Hornbill), while Brent have been 
operating on a legacy on-premise version until September as it was not 
perceived as a priority. This proved problematic to our service desk 
supervisors and our support team leaders, as they had to monitor two 
separate systems and prioritise work across separate queues. We 
therefore prioritised this migration and completed it in September. 
 
Additionally, although our service desk operate on a single online 
channel, and therefore their location is not critical to the service, we were 
operating since April with staff working on Brent calls based at Brent, 
and staff working on Lewisham calls at Lewisham. This led to 
inconsistencies in supervision and management of the service; with our 
vacancies we only had one call coordinator in post, and they had to 
constantly move between the two locations. Looking at the number of 
calls resolved by engineer, we saw significant differences between the 
two teams, without being able to identify a significant difference in the 
complexity of the calls. Finally, we felt one larger pool of engineers is 
more effective than two smaller pools, as it allows us to deal better with 
peaks at call volumes occurring in either council. We therefore moved 
both teams to Brent as of September. 

 

4.3 We are continuing to monitor the situation, and we anticipate an improvement 
in service levels in the coming months. The changes implemented in early 
September in centralising the service desk appear to have had an initial 
positive effect, however as the changes occurred during the month it is early 
to come to conclusions.  
 

4.4 It should also be noted that with the Brent migration to the new system we are 
now reporting on performance across three different call priority levels, where 
before all calls were reported on the same level, therefore comparison with 
previous months is not appropriate at this point. Additionally, we are not yet 
measuring the availability of all services in Lewisham, as this is still work in 
progress, we anticipate we will be able to report on these by late 2016. 

 
4.5 It is encouraging that the NPS (Net Promoter Score, an industry-standard 

metric we use to measure customer satisfaction) has been consistently 
positive for both Brent and Lewisham (any score above 20 is considered 
good). 



 
Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee  October 2016 

 
 

 

5.0 Budget Update 
 

5.1 The shared service manages a combined budget for both Councils (primarily 
staff costs) and it also manages separate IT spending on behalf of each 
Council (mainly infrastructure contracts).   Work is ongoing to combine these 
budgets and novate all IT contracts to Brent so the shared service can directly 
manage all related spending. This has taken more time than anticipated 
following the transition from Capita. 

 
5.2 Brent had a saving target of £1.62m for 16/17. This is met in full through 

savings realised by the implementation of the shared service, income 
generated from the contract with the LGA, and renegotiation and/or 
termination of third party contracts. The overall Brent IT budget is therefore 
currently forecasting a balanced budget. 

 
5.3 Brent are in the process of developing their overall digital strategy, and this is 

likely to lead to additional work and/or investment to deliver it. 
 

5.4 Lewisham agreed savings of £1m 2016/17 from a combination of the 
introduction of the shared service and a reduction in certain infrastructure 
costs.  Lewisham is on track to deliver these savings. Alongside this the 
Mayor and Cabinet agreed to invest £2.5m to update Lewisham’s 
infrastructure and we are on track to deliver the project within that budget.   

 

6.0 Financial Implications 

 
6.1 There are no direct financial implications from this report but both Councils 

decided to create a shared service on the basis that it would generate savings 
(whether income or cost reductions). 
 

6.2 Both parties have already realised significant savings, described in detail in 
section 5.  However, both parties will need to find future business from other 
boroughs to generate further savings and there are always risks attached to 
this.  Most boroughs aspire to generate income from other public sector 
bodies for services provided to them but are generally reluctant to pay other 
public sector bodies for a similarly provided service. 
 

6.3 Brent Council budget assumes savings of £375k per year for 2017/18 and 
2018/19 and it is likely that savings will be added for future years, subject to 
the success of the partnership. 

 
7.0 Legal Implications 

 
7.1 Brent Council hosts the shared ICT service, pursuant to the Local 

Government Act 1972, the Local Government Act 2000, the Localism Act 
2011 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) 
(England) Regulations 2012.These provisions allow one council to delegate 
one of its functions to another council as well as allowing two or more councils 
to discharge their functions jointly with the option of establishing a joint 



 
Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee  October 2016 

 
 

committee. Joint committees can in turn delegate functions to one or more 
officers of the councils concerned. Decisions of joint committees are binding 
on the participating councils. However, subject to the terms of the 
arrangement, the council retains the ability to discharge that function itself. 
 

 

8.0 Diversity Implications 

 

8.1 There are no direct diversity implications.  
 
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer(s) 
Prod Sarigianis, Head of Digital Services 
Email: prod.sarigianis@brent.gov.uk, Tel: 020 8937 6080 
 
 
 



ICT Shared Service

Lead Members
Cllr Margaret McLennan/Cllr Kevin Bonavia

Directors
Peter Gadsdon/Kevin Sheehan

MARCH 2016

Brent



Brent and Lewisham councils agreed to 

establish a shared service for ICT by April 

2016. The service will be initially delivering 

Infrastructure services to the two councils, 

including common ICT infrastructure, a service 

desk covering all aspects of ICT, associated 

project management, financial management, 

procurement and administration services. 

There are plans to expand the service further to 

incorporate application support, however it is 

envisaged that for 2016/2017 the two councils 

will retain their own separate application 

support teams, fronted by the shared service 

desk. Information Governance is not currently 

in the scope of the shared service.

The service is hosted by Brent, who will 

employ all staff and manage all ICT contracts 

on behalf of both councils; it is however setup 

to equally serve both organisations, managed 

by a shared management board and overseen 

by a joint committee. The full cost of delivering 

the service is split equally between the two 

councils, with the exception of costs related to 

contracts specific to one of the two councils. 

Additionally Brent is covering in full the FTE 

cost of staff involved in providing services to 

the Local Government Association, under a 

contract between Brent and the LGA. The 

aspiration however is that the shared service will 

be offering services to more organisations going 

forward, with all associated costs and benefits 

shared equally between the two councils.

This document outlines the Business Plan for the 

first year of the operation of the shared service 

(2016-17). This is obviously a transition period 

and this is reflected in the plan, with a significant 

element of the planned work focusing on 

bringing the infrastructure at Lewisham to the 

same level as Brent. Another significant element 

of the transition period is around setting up the 

structure of the shared service, with the initial 

transfer of staff from Capita and a subsequent 

restructure of the service.

Any activities related to LGA although 

performed by staff in the shared service are 

not included in this document, but have 

instead been incorporated in a separate 

business plan for the LGA.

Introduction



1. Core Business Activity 

DIVISION CORE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Digital Services Develop and provide high performing, customer focused and cost effective digital services to 
support effective service delivery across the councils; make best use of technology to deliver 
service benefits and improvements to residents and staff.

Infrastructure & Service Delivery

• Maintain all ICT infrastructure and corporate systems for the councils.

• Provide a centralised ICT service desk and an ICT drop-in service to staff.

Programmes, Transformation & Budget Management

• Provide project management services for all infrastructure-related ICT work.

• Manage the ICT budget and ICT procurement.

• Enable transformation work around channel migration and mobile working.

DIVISION KEY OUTCOMES

Digital Services Successful Implementation of infrastructure at Lewisham and migration of all existing services

Successful transition from Capita contract at Lewisham and establishment of new shared service 
structure to support the councils

Successful Implementation of the Community Access Strategy at Brent

Provision of ongoing support required to deliver the Lewisham Digital Programme

Enable better ways of working through automation, workflow and business intelligence in both 
councils

Collaboration with external partners to deliver and integrate ICT services

Readiness to implement the next phase to incorporate application support to the shared service

Development of infrastructure investment plan and draft application roadmap for the two 
councils

 



2. Planning Context

CONTEXT CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

Additional savings targets 
from both councils

Both councils have additional targets to deliver savings in 17/18 and beyond. This is 
going to be addressed to an extent through the second phase of consolidating the two 
application support teams into the shared service, but there will be a need to go further.

Implementation of resilient and scalable 
infrastructure platform and creation of a 
structure with a wider pool of resources 
to better support and develop it

All the work being done to implement the infrastructure, the work to prepare an 
infrastructure investment plan, and the restructure of the department to ensure we have 
the right resources in the right place to support this environment positions the shared 
service in a very good place to potentially sell services to other organisations, meeting 
financial targets and potentially generating additional income for the two councils.

3. Strategies 

STRATEGY NAME PERIOD IT COVERS LEAD OFFICER

Brent Community Access Strategy 2014-2017  
Currently being incorporated 
into the overall Digital Strategy

Margaret Read

Lewisham Digital Transformation 
Programme

2016-2018 
Scope being finalised, work 
has already commenced.

Duncan Dewhurst

4. Department Delivery Plan 

OBJECTIVE KEY ACTIVITY
PROGRESS
MILESTONES

SUCCESS 
CRITERIA

Successful transition 
from Capita contract 
at Lewisham and 
establishment of 
new shared service 
structure to support 
the councils

Joint Head of Digital 
Services

• Complete consultation with 
TUPE staff

• Agree location and roles for 
TUPE staff on the 1st of April

• Put in place transitional 
arrangements for support as 
of 1st of April

• Prepare proposed structure 
and consultation document

• Complete restructure and 
successfully recruit in all 
positions

• Consultation to be 
completed by 22/3/16

• Completed transition 
arrangements 
documented and 
communicated by 24/1/16

• Begin restructure 
consultation by 18/4/16

• Fully populated structure 
by 1/8/16

• No disruption to Lewisham services 
as a result of transition

• Data collection as of 1/4/16 to start 
reporting on all KPIs to measure the 
service

Implementation of 
Community Access 
Strategy for Brent

Head of Programmes, 
Transformation and 
Budget Management

• Support the development and 
implementation of the new 
customer services portal.

• Develop new eForms 
following agreed plan with 
customer services.

• Forms identified by 
Customer Services as 
priority migrated.

• Plan produced 
for migrating the 
remaining forms and 
decommissioning old 
eForms system.

• Residents able to authenticate through 
the portal and access council services.

• Old eForms system (no longer 
supported by the vendor) is 
decommissioned. New reliable 
platform with all forms migrated 
and improved available to the 
community. Increase in uptake of 
online forms.



OBJECTIVE KEY ACTIVITY
PROGRESS
MILESTONES

SUCCESS 
CRITERIA

Implementation of 
new Infrastructure 
& migration of 
Lewisham services

Head of Infrastructure 
& Service Delivery

• Rollout of desktop solution at 
Lewisham

• Migrate all Lewisham 
application servers to new 
infrastructure

• Consolidate Brent and 
Lewisham data network

• Upgrades/changes necessary 
to achieve joint PSN 
compliance

• Provision new remote access 
and mobile working solutions 
to Lewisham

• Network consolidation and 
availability of associated 
services by 30/5/16

• Completion of the desktop 
rollout by 13/6/16

• Priority services migration 
completed by  1/7/16 

• Completion of server 
migration by 30/9/16

• Successful submission to 
PSN by 28/10/16

• Fully resilient and reliable 
infrastructure hosting all Brent and 
Lewisham ICT services and meeting 
availability targets of 99% during 
business hours.

• Flexible and reliable desktop 
provision to all staff allowing them 
to work from any location accessing 
all council services

Collaboration and 
systems integration 
with partner 
organisations

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

• Providing the support required 
in relation to changes in 
infrastructure to support 
Brent and Lewisham initiatives 
to collaborate with partner 
organisations

• Delivery of remote access 
solution to Lewisham 
staff enabling them to 
access their corporate 
desktop from health office 
locations by 13/6/16

• Improved integration with partner 
organisation IT systems to better 
enable multi-agency care for the 
community.

Accelerating our 
journey to “Digital 
by Design” by 
utilising technology 
to implement 
process automation 
and process 
improvement.

Head of Programmes, 
Transformation and 
Budget Management

• Identify opportunities for 
application consolidation.

• Develop online forms with 
workflow to automate 
internal processes.

• Explore the use of a generic 
case management system 
to provide the back-end 
workflow for the processes. 

• Identify opportunities for 
mobile working.

• Integration between Tribal 
(Education) and Mosaic 
(Social Care) systems in 
Brent to provide single 
view of a child.

• Implementation of 
Manager self-service in 
Brent.

• Delivery of a joint 
application roadmap for 
Brent and Lewisham

• Improving data quality and 
integration between different data 
sets, enabling staff to improve 
services to residents by reducing 
application footprint or through 
integration across applications.

• Reduced application support costs 
to meet budget demands and 
safeguard Brent and Lewisham 
services.

• Staff enabled with better ways of 
working to deliver a better service to 
the community.



OBJECTIVE KEY ACTIVITY
PROGRESS
MILESTONES

SUCCESS 
CRITERIA

Readiness to 
implement the next 
phase to incorporate 
application support 
to the shared service

Joint Head of Digital 
Services

• Liaise with the Lewisham 
Application Support team to 
develop a joint structure and 
transition plans for the next 
phase.

• Agreed structure 
arrangements by 28/10/16

• Head of Applications in 
post by 2/12/16

• Complete restructure 
and agree transition 
arrangements by 1/4/17

• New structure in place by 
1/4/17

• Improve application support capacity 
for both councils by consolidating 
our resource pool and standardising 
our support arrangements.

• Deliver revenue savings to both 
councils

Develop 
opportunities for 
selling ICT services 
outside the shared 
service

Joint Head of Digital 
Services

• Identify and explore any 
further income generation 
opportunities.

• Ongoing discussions with 
other London LAs with 
potential interest to buy 
services.

• Explore opportunity to host 
the oneOracle system on 
behalf of the partnership, 
or as a minimum Brent and 
Lewisham.

• Deliver plans for raising 
additional income in 
18/19 by 1/4/17.

• Proposals for oneOracle 
hosting and support to 
both councils by 27/1/17.

• Maintain an ICT service with 
adequate funding to continue 
providing an excellent service to staff 
and the community.



5. Cumulative Equalities Impact

CUMULATIVE IMPACT OF PLANNED DELIVERY DURING 2016/17

EQUALITY
CHARACTERISTICS

POSITIVE NEGATIVE NEUTRAL
PLANNED ACTIVITY
AND COMMENTS

Age Yes Yes  N/A

• Increasing the number of transactions that can be 
completed online

• Positive impact on younger people who prefer to 
use online services than face to face interactions.

• Potential negative impact on older people who 
may be less comfortable using online services - 
mitigations in place to reduce this negative impact 
and ensure access.

Disability Yes  Yes N/A 

• Increasing the number of transactions that can be 
completed online

• Positive impact on disabled people as people with 
some impairments may find it easier to access 
services online than having to speak to an advisor. 

• Potential negative impact on disabled people who are 
less comfortable online (such as people with learning 
disabilities, visual impairment etc) - mitigated by 
enforcing accessibility standards for digital services 
and by always ensuring a range of channels to access 
services including face to face contact. 

Gender identity and 
expression

No No  Yes • No differential impact related to gender identity. 

Race No No  Yes • No differential impact related to race. 

Religion or belief No No  Yes • No differential impact related to religion or belief. 

Sex No No  Yes • No differential impact related to sex. 

Sexual Orientation No No  Yes • No differential impact related to sexual orientation. 

Pregnancy and 
maternity

No No  Yes
• No differential impact related to pregnancy and 

maternity. 

Marriage and civil 
partnership

No No  Yes
• No differential impact related to marriage and civil 

partnership. 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



6. Department performance measures for 2016/17

The following indicators measure the availability of the core supported services as a percentage – a 

99.9% availability measurement means that the service was unavailable for 0.1% of the time during 

the given month, or approximately 43 minutes.

KEY LINE OF 
BUSINESS 
SERVICE

MEASURE
RETAIN, 
DELETE  
OR NEW?

UNIT
ACCUMULATION 
OVER TIME

GOOD IS? FREQ
2015-16
 TARGET

2016-17
 TARGET

RESP OFFICER

Telephony 
(general)

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99.9%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Telephony 
(ACD - call 
centre)

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99.9%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Internet Access

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Website

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99.9%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Email

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Housing System

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99%
Head of 
Applications

R&B System

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99%
Head of 
Applications

Social Care 
System

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7) 

New % Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 99%
Head of 
Applications

oneOracle

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest Bigger is 
better M’ly N/A 99% Head of 

Applications

Remote Access

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest Bigger is 
better M’ly N/A 99%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Desktop Service

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest Bigger is 
better M’ly N/A 99%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

Planning

Key line of business 
service aggregated 
up time in the month 
(monitored 24/7)

New % Latest Bigger is 
better M’ly N/A 99%

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery



KEY LINE OF 
BUSINESS 
SERVICE

MEASURE
RETAIN, 
DELETE  
OR NEW?

UNIT
ACCUMULATION 
OVER TIME

GOOD IS? FREQ
2015-16
 TARGET

2016-17
 TARGET

RESP OFFICER

SOCITM Project 
Success Index

See ‘A’ below for 
explanation of 
measure

New
Score 
out 
of 9

Latest
Bigger is 
better

A’ly N/A 7

Head of 
Programmes, 
Transformation 
and Budget 
Management

Net Promoter 
Score

See ‘B’ below for 
explanation of 
measure

New
-100 
to 
+100

Latest
Bigger is 
better

M’ly N/A 20

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

User 
Satisfaction 
Survey (based 
on SOCITM 
guidelines)

See ‘C’ below for 
explanation of 
measure

New
Score 
out 
of 7

Latest
Bigger is 
better

A’ly N/A 6
Joint Head of 
Digital 
Services

A.  The Project Success Index is a SOCITM metric used to evaluate how successful an organisation is in managing projects, 
looking at a number of factors over all projects that were completed over a year with a budget of over £30k. The 
resulting score is used for benchmarking against other local authorities. 

B.  The Net Promoter Score is a measure used widely by organisations providing IT services to measure customer satisfaction. It is 
not a percentage; it ranges from -100 to 100, and any positive number is consider good, with 50 or above considered excellent. 
The NPS is calculated from responses to the survey questions sent to individuals every time one of their calls is resolved.

C.  The Society for IT Management (SOCITM) offers an IT user satisfaction survey as a service to public sector organisations. 
Brent have been using that as it is a standard survey used by many local authorities and this facilitates a level of 
benchmarking of how well we do in relation to peer organisations. It was agreed that a survey with a similar set of 
questions and structure would be adopted by the LGA for the same reason.



7. Budget

The shared service budget for 16/17 is £5,485k, however this only represents the elements of the 

service currently shared. Brent and Lewisham both have separate application support teams, along 

with a number of application support contracts. Work is being done at the moment to prepare to 

consolidate everything to one budget by April 2017.

8. Staffing 
 

DIVISION/TEAM
NUMBER OF 
POSTS ON 

ESTABLISHMENT

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF STAFF  
(AND FTE)

VACANCIES

Head of Digital Services 1 1

Infrastructure & Service Delivery 40 37 3

Programmes, Transformation &  
Budget Management

9 8 1

TOTAL 50 46 4



9. Risks 
 

ID
RISK 
IDENTIFICATION

IMPACT RISK OWNER

RESIDUAL (NET) RISK 
AFTER MITIGATION

MITIGATION 
ACTIONS

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER

IMPACT
LIKELIHOOD 
(NEXT 12 
MTHS)

RISK 
SCORE

01 Catastrophic loss 
of Data Centre

Loss of access to 
IT services for staff 
and residents 

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

3 1 3

Secondary data 
centre able 
to deliver all 
ICT services. 
Maintenance 
of Data Centre, 
proactive 
monitoring of 
environment 
and equipment.

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

02
Loss of Access to 
the Council main 
buildings

ICT staff do not 
have access to data 
centre equipment; 
staff do not have 
access to network 
and desktops 

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

1 1 1

Secondary data 
centre able to 
deliver all ICT 
services. All 
systems can 
be managed 
remotely. All 
staff have access 
to remote 
desktop. Staff 
can work in 
either council 
offices.

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

 03
Substantial 
degradation to 
critical database

Loss of customer 
records; loss of 
access to view or 
update records.

Head of 
Applications

3 1 3

Regular 
backups, 
transaction 
logs, offsite 
storage of 
backup media, 
effective 
change control 
process.

Head of 
Applications

04
Serious security 
breach

Reputational 
damage. Financial 
Penalties.

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

3 1 3

Regular 
patching of 
all systems. 
Maintenance 
of security 
controls. 
Effective 
change control 
process.

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

05
Loss of key 
technical 
personnel

Inability to 
maintain key 
systems. High cost 
of buying external 
support.

Joint Head 
of Digital 
Services

3 1 3

Leadership. 
Staff 
development 
and sharing of 
skills.

Joint Head of 
Digital Services

06

Delays in the 
delivery of the 
Infrastructure 
project create 
operational 
issues and/or 
compromise 
PSN compliance 
status

Disruption to ICT 
services for staff. 
Loss of connectivity 
to PSN services.

Joint Head 
of Digital 
Services

3 1 3

Close 
monitoring of 
the project. 
Ensure 
adequate 
resourcing and 
prioritising of 
tasks. Ongoing 
engagement 
with GDS.

Joint Head of 
Digital Services



10. Current department structure

Joint Head of Digital Services

Head of Infrastructure & Service Delivery
Head of Programmes, Transformation & Budget 

Management

Technical Team Leader (Applications Support) 2 x Senior Project Manager (PO6)2 x Project Manager

2 x Finance & Contract Officer

Problem & Service Improvement Manager

Digital Channels & Mobile Working Manager

Technical Team Leader(Voice & Data Network) (PO6)

Technical Team Leader(Datacentre Support)

Technical Team Leader(Client Support) (PO6)

2 x Technical Support Coordinator (PO4)

Technical Architect (PO7)

IT Support Consultant (Email Lead)  

IT Support Consultant (Database Lead)  

IT Support Consultant 

2 x Senior IT Support Officer 2 x Senior IT Support Officer

IT Support Consultant (Networks Lead)  

IT Support Consultant (Telephony Lead)  

2 x IT Support Consultant 

2 x Senior IT Support Officer 

2 x Senior IT Support Officer

IT Support Consultant (Server & Storage Lead) 

4 x IT Support Consultant 

Senior IT Support Officer  

2 x Senior IT Support Officer

IT Support Consultant (Desktops Lead) (PO4) 

IT Support Consultant (PO3) 

Senior IT Support Officer (PO2) 

2 x Senior IT Support Officer (PO1) 

4 x IT Support Officer (SO1)



2016 OCTOBER 
PERFORMANCE PACK

Brent



Business Plan Objective 

BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVE MILESTONE STATUS NOTES

Successful transition from Capita 
contract at Lewisham and 
establishment of new shared 
service structure to support the 
councils

Consultation (TUPE) to be completed by 
22/3/16

Complete

Completed transition arrangements 
documented and communicated by 
24/1/16

Complete

Begin restructure consultation by 18/4/16 Complete

Fully populated structure by 1/8/16 Complete Some vacancies left to recruit 
now

Implementation of Community 
Access Strategy for Brent

Forms identified by Customer Services as 
priority migrated

In Progress

Plan produced for migrating the 
remaining forms and decommissioning 
old eForms system

N/A To be agreed with Customer 
Services

Additional tasks from Customer Services N/A To be determined

Implementation of new 
Infrastructure & migration of 
Lewisham services

Network consolidation and availability of 
associated services by 30/5/16

Complete

Completion of the desktop rollout by 
13/6/16

Complete

Priority services migration completed by  
1/7/16

Complete Laising with vendors

Completion of server migration by 
30/9/16

In Progress Timescales extended, work 
ongoing

Successful submission to PSN by 28/10/16 Complete Submission completed and 
certificate awarded

Collaboration and systems 
integration with partner 
organisations

Delivery of remote access solution to 
Lewisham staff enabling them to access 
their corporate desktop from health 
office locations by 13/6/16

In Progress Solution already working and 
tested at Kaleidoscope

Accelerating our journey to 
“Digital by Design” by utilising 
technology to implement 
process automation and process 
improvement.

Integration between Tribal (Education) 
and Mosaic (Social Care) systems in Brent 
to provide single view of a child

In Progress Met Tribal who are working 
on integration following their 
acquisition by Servelec

Implementation of Manager self-service 
in Brent

N/A Timescale to be confirmed from 
business

Delivery of a joint application roadmap 
for Brent and Lewisham by 31/3/17

In Progress Ongoing documentation of 
services; TDA group in place as 
advisory for digital programme

Additional tasks from Digital Programme 
at both councils

N/A To be determined

Readiness to implement the next 
phase to incorporate application 
support to the shared service

Agreed structure arrangements by 
28/10/16

In Progress

Head of Applications in post by 2/12/16 In Progress

Complete restructure and agree transition 
arrangements by 1/4/17

In Progress

New structure in place by 1/4/17 In Progress

Develop opportunities for selling 
ICT services outside the shared 
service

Deliver plans for raising additional 
income in 18/19 by 1/4/17

In Progress In discussions with a number of 
councils developing ideas at this 
stage

Proposals for oneOracle hosting and 
support to both councils by 27/1/17

In Progress Business case being finalised in 
Oct-16



Risks 

ID
RISK 
IDENTIFICATION

IMPACT RISK OWNER

RESIDUAL (NET) RISK 
AFTER MITIGATION

MITIGATION 
ACTIONS

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER

IMPACT
LIKELIHOOD 
(NEXT 12 
MTHS)

RISK 
SCORE

01 Catastrophic loss 
of Data Centre

Loss of access to 
IT services for staff 
and residents 

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

3 1 3

Secondary data 
centre able 
to deliver all 
ICT services. 
Maintenance 
of Data Centre, 
proactive 
monitoring of 
environment 
and equipment.

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

02
Loss of Access to 
the Council main 
buildings

ICT staff do not 
have access to data 
centre equipment; 
staff do not have 
access to network 
and desktops 

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

1 1 1

Secondary data 
centre able to 
deliver all ICT 
services. All 
systems can 
be managed 
remotely. All 
staff have access 
to remote 
desktop. Staff 
can work in 
either council 
offices.

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

 03
Substantial 
degradation to 
critical database

Loss of customer 
records; loss of 
access to view or 
update records.

Head of 
Applications

3 1 3

Regular 
backups, 
transaction 
logs, offsite 
storage of 
backup media, 
effective 
change control 
process.

Head of 
Applications

04
Serious security 
breach

Reputational 
damage. Financial 
Penalties.

Head of 
Infrastructure 
& Service 
Delivery

3 1 3

Regular 
patching of 
all systems. 
Maintenance 
of security 
controls. 
Effective 
change control 
process.

Head of 
Infrastructure & 
Service Delivery

05
Loss of key 
technical 
personnel

Inability to 
maintain key 
systems. High cost 
of buying external 
support.

Joint Head 
of Digital 
Services

3 1 3

Leadership. 
Staff 
development 
and sharing of 
skills.

Joint Head of 
Digital Services

06

Delays in the 
delivery of the 
Infrastructure 
project create 
operational 
issues and/or 
compromise 
PSN compliance 
status

Disruption to ICT 
services for staff. 
Loss of connectivity 
to PSN services.

Joint Head 
of Digital 
Services

3 1 3

Close 
monitoring of 
the project. 
Ensure 
adequate 
resourcing and 
prioritising of 
tasks. Ongoing 
engagement 
with GDS.

Joint Head of 
Digital Services



Brent Service Desk KPIs

SYSTEM AVAILABILITY KPIS TARGET FREQUENCY
OVERALL 
16-17

APR-16 MAY-16 JUN-16 JUL-16 AUG-16 SEP-16

Telephony 99.90% Monthly 100% 100% 100% 98.90% 100.00% 100%

ACD (Call Centre) 99.90% Monthly 100% 100% 100% 98.74% 100.00% 99.70%

Internet Access 99% Monthly 100% 100% 100% 98.90% 100.00% 100%

Website 99.90% Monthly 99.44% 99.20% 99.87% 97.91% 100.00% 99.70%

Email Service 99% Monthly 99.99% 99.99% 100% 98.98% 100.00% 99.70%

Housing System 99% Monthly 100% 99.98% 99.96% 99.00% 100.00% 99.70%

R&B System 99% Monthly 99.36% 99.75% 100% 98.44% 99.24% 99.42%

Social Care System 99% Monthly 98.88% 99.38% 99.79% 97.85% 97.80% 99.55%

Planning System 99% Monthly 100% 100% 100% 98.90% 100.00% 99.70%

oneOracle 99% Monthly 82.82% 99.68% 97.94% 98.13% 98.63% 99.36%

Remote Access Service 99% Monthly 99.51% 100% 100% 98.99% 100.00% 99.72%

Desktop Service 99% Monthly 100% 100% 100% 98.99% 100.00% 99.72%

SERVICE DESK KPIS

P1 Calls Resolved within SLA 95% Monthly N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 20%

P2 Calls Resolved within SLA 90% Monthly N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 47.62%

P3 Calls Resolved with SLA 80% Monthly 79.08% 75.30% 76.96% 77.18% 73.05% 72.84%

Volume of Incidents & Requests N/A Monthly 4600 4524 4619 4523 4064 4559

Number of Problem Records N/A Monthly 2 2 1 4 5 2

Number of Change Records N/A Monthly 12 5 19 12 7 24

OTHER KPIS

Process Success Index (out of 9) 7 Annually N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net Promoter Score 20 Monthly 62.15 60.21 59.47 63.62 57.87 66.95

User Satisfaction Survey (out 
of 7) 6 Annually N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

 
Exceptions
Apr-16  Brent Oneoracle outages – system hosted by Cap Gemini
Jun-16  Brent Oneoracle outages – system hosted by Cap Gemini
Jul-16  Brent Power Outage at Civic Centre resulted in outages (out of hours)
Aug-16  Brent Updates for Social Care application, outgage for work done out of hours
Sep-16  Brent  First month of reporting on SLAs across all 3 priorities, incorrect categorisation of calls, but 

also showing performance issues that were masked when everything was reported as P3



Lewisham Service Desk KPIs

SYSTEM AVAILABILITY KPIS TARGET FREQUENCY
OVERALL 
16-17

APR-16 MAY-16 JUN-16 JUL-16 AUG-16 SEP-16

Telephony 99.90% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

ACD (Call Centre) 99.90% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Internet Access 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Website 99.90% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Email Service 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL 100% 98.98% 100% 99.70%

Housing System 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

R&B System 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Social Care System 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Planning System 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

oneOracle 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Remote Access Service 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

Desktop Service 99% Monthly UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL UNVL

SERVICE DESK KPIS

P1 Calls Resolved within SLA 95% Monthly 64.10% 33.33% 55.32% 48.54% 43.12% 55.95%

P2 Calls Resolved within SLA 90% Monthly 48.98% 61.17% 38.67% 63.94% 54.55% 60.09%

P3 Calls Resolved with SLA 80% Monthly 67.23% 61.31% 54.88% 62.01% 61.28% 59.06%

Volume of Incidents & Requests N/A Monthly 2458 2270 2853 3027 2857 2902

Number of Problem Records N/A Monthly 2 7 6 8 5 0

Number of Change Records N/A Monthly 9 6 11 8 10 4

OTHER KPIS

Process Success Index (out of 9) 7 Annually N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net Promoter Score 20 Monthly UNVL UNVL 42.1 40.51 39.2 42.07

User Satisfaction Survey (out 
of 7) 6 Annually N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

 
Exceptions

Call resolution performance is explained in more detail in the report: transition from old infrastructure, 
resources taken by the infrastructure project, maintaining old and new infrastructure some of the major factors 
that have been affecting performance. Majority of calls logged under P1 are not P1 calls. Looking for the 
numbers to improve between September and the end of the year


	Agenda
	1 Report to the ICT Shared Service Joint Committee October 2016
	2 ICT Shared Service
	3 2016 OCTOBER PERFORMANCE

